
1 
 

Central Falls School District Board of Trustees  
Meeting Minutes 
March 23, 2010 

6:00 p.m. 
Central Falls High School - Auditorium 

 
 
I. Call to Order and Roll Call  
 
Chairperson, Ms. Anna Cano-Morales called the Central Falls School District Board of 
Trustees Meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Present were: Ms. Anna Cano-Morales, Chairwoman 

Ms. Sonia Rodrigues, Vice Chairwoman  
    Ms. Mary Lou Perez, Clerk  

Mr. B.K. Nordan (6:02 PM) 
Ms. Leslie Estrada 
Ms. Ana Cecilia Rosado  

  
Not Present: Mr. Vladimir Ibarra 
 
II. Pledge 
 
After the pledge Ms. Cano-Morales explained that the last Board meeting had to be cancelled 
because of some violations that had been found by the Governor’s Commission on 
Disabilities and if the meeting had occurred before the violations had been rectified the Board 
and the Superintendent could have been held liable and had a penalty of up to $5000.  She 
also acknowledged the boys basketball champions, and announced that Mr. Ibarra was not 
present due to the birth of his child. 
 
III. Policy and Planning 
 
A. Request for Chess Club to travel 
 
Mr. Daniel Amadio informed the Board that the chess team would be traveling to the chess 
nationals in Cleveland, Ohio from April 16-18 for the championships. Only one day of school 
would be missed.  He gave the details regarding the budget; fundraising efforts, and the 
number of students and adults that would be traveling as well as the travel arrangements.  
 
Action: The request was approved 6, 0. 
 
B. RIDE response to staff protocol policy 
 
Dr. Gallo shared the Commissioner’s response to the staff protocol policy.  
 



2 
 

C. RTTT ongoing discussion- turnaround plan development 
 
Dr. Gallo presented the Board with the material from the March 11 stakeholder meeting (see 
the attached PowerPoint). 
 
Ms. Cano-Morales, who represents the Board on the stakeholder group, stated that members 
from the Annenberg Institute were facilitating the stakeholder group meetings. 
 
During the presentation Dr. Gallo reported that students had visited the MATCH school 
located in Boston to see the tutorials and to see how feasible it could be in Central Falls. 
 
In clarifying one of the slides, Dr. Gallo stated for the record, “When we talk about the 
educational lead team we don’t mean only administrators; it also includes the teacher leaders. 
It is that team that is really required to have operational flexibility within the school.” 
 
The District is proceeding with the stakeholder planning group, which currently consists of 
about 45 people from various organizations. The parent stakeholder group is also taking 
place. There is also a negotiating planning pathway that will take place. 
 
IV. Public Comment 
 
Dana Ferrara, a 6th grade ELA educator, commented on her middle school endorsement and 
had questions regarding her certification.  
 
Walter Hourahan commented on changes in high school specific to principals and schedules 
and that each change has been endorsed by the School Improvement Team.  
 
Annie McLaughlin stated her concerns regarding figures that were circulated in the national 
and international press. She stated which statistics she felt were inaccurate and requested that 
the Board give the correct data. 
 
Pat McKenna commented on the findings of the Commissioner’s visit that was done in 2006-
2007 related to Jumpstart Academy in the Central Falls High School. She stated that on 
January 9, 2007 the Jumpstart Academy, an alternative program, was recognized as the most 
notable. The commendation was for it to continue but it was abolished.  
 
Jennifer Barber commented on the termination letters that were received by her and her 
colleagues at Ella Risk Elementary school. She stated that they were not the regular layoff 
letters received in the past. She had several questions regarding the letters and felt that there 
is a lack of communication. Ms. Cano-Morales informed Ms. Barber after public comment 
was concluded she would ask Dr. Gallo to respond to her questions.  
 
Cheryl Aucoin, a developmental reading specialist at the high school, stated that she was 
formerly a resource teacher and was amazed by the low literacy skills so she built an 
intervention program using the Wilson Reading System as well as conducting workshops for 
colleagues, but it was closed by Dr. Watkins. She spoke about other programs which 
included America's Choice, Read 180 and AMP, which were purchased, used and then later 
discontinued or replaced. 
 



3 
 

Don Blais, a Central Falls High School teacher, shared some reflections on his time at 
Central Falls High School. He commented on the various changes and how they had been 
embraced.  
 
George McLaughlin, a guidance counselor at the Central Falls High School, commented on 
the guidance office’s role in the school. He commented on the renewal and growth of the 
National Honor Society as well as the rigorous criteria that is needed to be a member. He 
commented on the progress that had been made which included more college visits to the 
high school, more college acceptance letters, more financial aid, ACT testing, and more SAT 
prep. He thanked Marylou Perez and BK Nordan for being people of conscious. 
 
Michael Paul commented on the America's Choice program that had been in place for two 
years and the success he saw with it. He stated that teachers were extensively trained and had 
the curriculum.  
 
Jessica Parkhurst commented on the Investigations math program, which she stated had not 
been effective and does not have a good foundation. She feels the reason the high school 
math scores are low is because the elementary level is low. She cited a source from 
youtube.com that would prove its ineffectiveness.  
 
Kathy Luther shared her views regarding mathematics. She stated that the students were 
coming to the high school with no basic math skills, and that Math Investigations is not for 
Central Falls because the children here need drill and repetition. Students were trained on 
calculators but now with the NECAP testing calculators can't be used.  
 
Nancy Ursillo commented on her schedule within the four academies. She stated that three 
special education teachers were servicing all four academies. She was concerned that the 
students were not receiving the proper supports.  
 
Jorge Torres, Central Falls High School math teacher, commented that in the 2007-2008 
academic year, when the school was putting together the PBGR and GSE, there were no 
longer department heads. He commented that in 2008 on the first day of school there was an 
ESL math class with no teacher. He stated that when the administration realized that they had 
forgotten to hire an ESL math teacher and it took one month to hire one.  
 
Hope Evanoff, a Central Falls High School French teacher, commented that she would like to 
have more of a voice in the decisions regarding professional development. She suggested 
professional development academy collaboration.  
 
Richard Kinslow, Central Falls High School teacher, commented on his 21 years of teaching 
as well as his work on committees to help improve the school. He briefly commented on the 
America's Choice program that was used and discontinued by a former Superintendent. He 
asked that negotiations start over with common ground to build and unite team work.  
 
Elizabeth Laramee commented that the situation at the high school was not the teachers’ 
fault. 
 
Dale Dearnley, a Central Falls High School science teacher, commented on the SMILE club 
that is funded partially by URI and spoke to how many hours of her own time and money she 
had put into professional development. She stated that the administration forced her to 



4 
 

decline a grant and encouraged the board to look into all the facts. 
 
Alice Webb read a comment from a letter to the editor that she did not write but reflected her 
opinion.  
 
As requested by Ms. Cano-Morales, Dr. Gallo responded to Jennifer Barber and asked 
Human Resource Director Kathy Gaouette to respond as well. Ms. Barber’s questions were 
answered.  
 
VII. Consent Agenda   
 
The consent agenda included the February 23 regular meeting minutes and personnel actions.  
 
The motion to approve was made by Ms. Estrada and seconded by Ms. Rodrigues. It was 
approved 6, 0. 
 
VIII. Superintendent’s Report   
 
A. Breakfast program lawsuit 
 
Both Robertson and Ella risk have 75% of children eating breakfast and Veterans has 85%. 
The program has been well received by parents and students. Robertson and Ella Risk have 
each received a grant from the Rhode Island Food bank in the amount $1,000. Dr. Gallo 
acknowledged the principals Sharon Cabral and Maureen Azar.  
 
The breakfast program lawsuit is still in the courts. 
 
B. Funding formula  
 
The District has been working closely with Jeremy Giller, Title Director of Development for 
The Learning Community, to review the impact of the funding formula to Central Falls and 
how they have equated Central Falls to Providence. Dr. Gallo recommended inviting Mr. 
Giller to present that work to the Board. 
 
There was discussion regarding Central Falls unique position in that they have not been able 
to engage the municipality and the state’s  reserve funds puts the District at greater risk for 
having funding be cut. There was discussion in support of a funding formula but that it 
needed to be viewed from the perspective of Central Falls and its situation. The Board urged 
people to reach out to Senator Crowley and Representative Silva regarding funding.  
 
There was a discussion of how the funding formula would impact the District’s May 11 
deadline for the High School’s comprehensive plan. It was clarified that the funding formula 
is regular funding money and the other is from the Title I grant.  
 
B. Administrator Search Efforts 
 
The District has received a number of applicants for the high school administrator position as 
well as for the turnaround leader.  
 



5 
 

B. Recognition 
 
Dr. Gallo commended Sharon Cabral and the Robertson School as well as Joseph Rousseau 
and the Captain Hunt Learning Center for their Commissioner review which was stellar. 
 
C. Facilities update 
 
Dr. Gallo recently attended the Lincoln Town Council to request leasing the Fairlawn School 
and have been successful. St. Leo's lease will not be renewed and was only for 1 year. More 
money would have been spent trying to stay in the St. Leo location. There were no further 
updates on facilities. 
 
X. School Board Comment/Communications 
 
Ms. Cano-Morales commented that she was very aware of the Math Investigations because 
her son uses it in the school that he attends. She also requested an update regarding the Pre-
Kindergarten pilot program for the next meeting. 
 
Ms. Perez commented that her son, who attends the Central Falls High School, was told by 
guidance that the SAT's were for those students who were going to college. She stated that 
she told him to go back to guidance and demand to know the days for the SAT testing. Perez 
clarified that it had not been Mr. McLaughlin. Ms. Perez also recognized the Special 
Olympic events and the swim meet that were held over the weekend. She also mentioned that 
the Special Olympics team was scheduled to go to Nebraska. 
 
Ms. Rosado commented that she felt some degree of encouragement with how the teachers 
had acted during this meeting, which was a huge contrast with the heckling and jeering that 
they engaged in during the February 23rd meeting. 
 
IX. Next Board of Trustees Meetings 
 
Board of Trustees regular meeting: Tuesday, April 13, 2010.  
 
XI. Motion to Recess to Executive Session and Adjournment 
 
Ms. Rosado asked for a motion to recess to executive session pursuant to chapter 42-46-
5(a)(2), that this public body  convene in executive session to discuss certain matters that are 
the subject of collective bargaining and litigation (Non-certified negotiations) and it was 
seconded by Ms. Rodrigues. A roll call vote was taken and was unanimous, 6 to 0.  
 
Ms. Cano-Morales noted for the public that the Trustees would not reconvene into public 
session.  
 


